
Attended 

December 

4,2013 

ID Last Name First Name Organization E-Mail Address Meeting 

134 Purcell Larry SDCWA l[1urcell@sdcwa.org 

135 Quigley Andrew Tucson Water andrew.guigley@tucsonaz.gov 

136 Ray mray@azleg.gov 

137 Reece Mary USBOR mreece@usbr.gov 

138 Renner George g:eorenner@aol.com 

139 Roberts Dave SRP dcrobert@sri;inet.com 

140 Roos mroos@water.ca.gov 

141 Rossi Terri Sue AWBA tsrossi@azwater.gov 

142 Rot Stephen Scottsdale, City of srot@scottsdaleaz.gov 

143 Rule Dennis CAGRD drule@cai;i-az.com 

144 Rupprecht Candice candicer@cals.arizona.edu 

145 Ruzgerian Harry hruzgerian@mwdh2o.com 

146 Saletta Phil Oro Valley, Town of (;1Sa1etta@orovalleyaz.gov 

147 Schehuber mschlehuber@greenstoneri:1.com 

148 Schmidt Sheila sschmidt@gustlaw.com 

149 Schmitt Kathryn CAP ksch mitt@ca(;l-az.com 

150 Schwartz-Manock Bridgette CAP bschwartzmanock@cai;i-az.com 

151 Seasholes Ken CAP kseasholes@cag-az.com 

152 Sejkora Bob Arizona State Parks rds2@azstategarks.gov 

153 Sharpe Pico Holdings rsharge@gicoholdings.com 

154 Shipman Taylor Errol Montgomery tshigman@elmontgomery.com 

155 Siegel Rich SRP rssiegel@srgnet.com IZ4-
156 Silvani Gerard Phoenix, City of lgerard.silvani®nhoenix.11:ov 
157 Simon Benjamin Benjamin Simon@ios.doi.gov 

158 Singelton Joe PCWAA jsingleton@gcwaa-az.org 

159 Sinkey Erica Vidler Water esinkey@vidlerwater.com 

160 Slowinski Ken ADWR kcslowinski@azwater.gov 

161 Snider David Pinal County davidsnider@cybertrails.com �,r,_ 

162 Spatton dsgatton@aol.com y 

163 Stewart Annie Fennemore Craig ASTEWARTi@FCLAW.com I 
164 Stinnett Robin SRP robin.stinnett@srgnet.com 

165 Stirling Scott sstirling@beusgilbert.com 

166 Stowe Tami Arizona House of Representatives tstowe@azleg.gov 

167 Swan whswan@aol.com 

168 Sweeney Sheryl Ryley Carlock & Applewhite ssweeney@rcalaw.com 

169 Tamashiro Larry Las Vegas Valley Water District larry.tamashiro@lvvwd.com 

170 Tannler jeff ADWR jmtannler@azwater.gov 

171 Tenney Warren CAP wtenney@metrowater.com 

172 Thompason Crystal CAP cthomQson@caQ-az.com 

173 Thompson Dirk Tucson Water dirk.thom(;1son@tucsonaz.gov 

174 Thorley Matthew Las Vegas Valley Water District matthew.thorley@lvvwd.com 

175 Timian-Palmer Dorothy Vidler dorothy@vidlerwater.com 

176 Tobin Andrew Arizona House of Representatives atobin@azleg.gov 

177 Toy Doug Chandler, City of doug.toy@chandleraz.gov 

178 Turkett Warren CRCN wturkett@crc.nv.gov 

179 Udall Chris Agribusiness Council chris@agribusinessarizona.org 

180 van Allen Bill New Magma bvanallennewmagma@mchsi.com 

181 VanQuathem Michele Ryley Carlock & Applewhite mva nguathem@rcalaw.com 

182 Vasquez Suzanne Phoenix, City of suzanne.vasguez@ghoenix.gov 

183 Walker Shelly MSIDD shelly@msidd.com 

184 Ward Grant MSIDD grant@msidd.com 

185 Weber Magill Nature Conservancy mweber@tnc.org 

186 Whitler Ron Buckeye, Town of rwhitler@buckeyeaz.gov 

187 Widmark Derrick info@diablotrust.org 

188 Williams John SRP mflowe®srnnet.com 

189 Williams Roger rwilliams@torrentresources.com 

190 Wilson Richard wilsonwater@aol.com 

191 Wilson Walley Tucson Water wally.wilson@tucsonaz.gov 

192 Wilson mwilson2l@cox.net 

193 Woner Jeff Tonopah Irrigation District TIDDistrictAdmin@krsalien.com 

194 Wong Ron BKW Famrs ron@bkwfarms.com 

195 Zimmerman Carol CAP carol@zimmermancom.com 

196 CAIDD Glinda@caidd.com 

197 CMID cmidl2253@comcast.net 

198 a(;larizona@a(;l.org 

199 hlh5l@aol.com 

200 no4son@earthlink.net 

201 E1lummernw@aol.com 

202 f;10smon@azleg.gov 

203 rburnsaz@cox.net 
204 robinson@gilanet.net 
205 UmHani@aol.com 
206 waterllc@earthlink.net 
207 wbaldo@azleg.gov 
208 ygliu@hwr.arizona.edu 



Attended 

December 

4,2013 

ID Last Name First Name Organization E-Mail Address Meeting 

69 Henley Tim AWBA thenley@azwater.gov 

70 Henning Brian CAP bhenning@cai:1-az.com 

71 Holler Eric USBOR eholler@usbr.gov 

72 Holway Jim CAP HolwayforCAWCD@gmail.com 

73 lkeya Deanna ADWR dkikeya@azwater.gov 

74 Jacobs Pat CAP lmjiv@lion-l.com 

75 Jardee jhardee@cox.net 

76 Jesser MJ CAP m jesser@caQ-az.com 

77 Johanson Hakon Gilbert, Town of hakon.Johanson@gilbert.gov 

78 Johnson Jeff Las Vegas Valley Water District jeff.johnson@lvvwd.com 

79 Johnson Theresa ADWR tjohnson@azwater.gov 

80 Kai Herb Kai Farms herb@kaifarms.com 

81 Kamienski Eric Tempe, City of eric kamienski@temQe.gov 

82 Kash Gina Arizona Legislature gkash@asleg.gov 

83 King mlking@iid.com 

84 Klobas Nicole ADWR ndklobas@azwater.gov � 
85 Knox Kathi Knox Consulting kathiknox@cox.net 

86 Korich Dee Tucson Water Dee.Korich@tucsonaz.gov 

87 Kukino Doug Glendale, City of kukino@ci.glendale.az.us 

88 Kupel Doug Glendale, City of DKuQel@GLENDALEAZ.COM 

89 Kusel Diane ADWR djkusel@azwater.gov 

90 Lacey Mike ADWR mjlacey@azwater.gov 

91 Lane Colleen ADWR cklane@azwater.gov 

92 Lea Harold Active Water Markets haroldlea@activewatermarkets.com 

93 Leary Jason Brown and Caldwell jleatY@brwncald.com 

94 Lenderking Jake Epcor jlenderking@eQcor.com 

95 Lew Mark NPVA mark@nQva.net 

96 Lewis Mark CAP mark@marklewis.com 

97 Little Val vlittle@ag.arizona.edu 

98 Macre Heather CAP Heathermacre4CAWCD@gmail.com 

99 Maguire Rita Maguire & Pearce rmaguire@mQwaterlaw.com 

100 Maher Thomas SNWA thomas.maher@snwa.com 

101 Maniccia Peter gmaniccia@homebfc.com 

102 Marquez Lawrence USBOR lrmarguez@usbr.gov 

103 Mawhinney John jtm012@comcast.net 

104 Mccann Tom CAP tmccann@caQ-az.com n/'--
105 McEachern Ron CAIDD manager@caidd.com 

106 McJunkin Christa SRP christ.mcjunkin@srgnet.com 

107 McKenna Juliet Errol Montgomery jmckenna@elmontgometY.com NYl,vL-
108 McMullen Patrick Qatrick.mcmullen@itcaonline.com /I 
109 McNulty Michael Lewis and Roca Michael McNulty@lrlaw.com 

110 Megdal Sharon CAP smegdal@cals.arizona.edu 

111 Merrill Dave Vidler Water dmerrill@vidlerwater.com 

112 Miller Adam City of Phoenix ada m.miller@Qhoenix.gov 

113 Moore Colette Mesa, City of Colette.Moore(@mesaaz.gov 

114 Moreno Michelle ADWR mamoreno@azwater.gov 

115 Morrison Richard rnm@slwQlc.com 

116 Moulton Cynthia CAP cyterleegrace 7@yahoo.com 

117 Moyes Jay iimoyes@lawms.com 

118 Myers MHMYERS@aol.com 

119 Nally Karen knallylaw@cox.net 

120 Neal Cliff Phoenix, City of clifford.neal@Qhoenix.gov n.__ 
121 Nelson Doug DougCNelson@cox.net 

122 Newlin dmnewlin@aol.com 

123 Nunez Christine Surprise, City of Christine.Nunez@surQriseaz.com 

124 O'Connell Virginia AWBA voconnell@azwater.gov 

125 Olszak Nathan singlemn21@hotmail.com 

126 Orme Paul Salmon, Lewis & Weldon Qro@slwQlc.com 

127 Ozomaro Jack CAP jozomaro@caQ-az.com 

128 Parker Gary GRIDD GLParker@griidd.com 

129 Pearce Mike Maguire & Pearce mQearce@mQwaterlaw.com 

130 Peterson McClain Colorado River Commission of Nevada mQeterson@crc.nv.gov 

131 Philbin Asia Tucson Water asia.Qhilbin@tucsonaz.gov 

132 Pickard Pamela CAP QQickard@cox.net 

133 Pierson Timothy GRlC tim.Qierson@gric.nsn.us 



Attended 

December 

4, 2013 

ID Last Name First Name Organization E-Mail Address Meeting 

1 Arnold Tom Tucson Water tarnoldl@ci.tucson.az.us 

2 Atkins Lisa CAP laatkins@gmail.com 

3 Avery Christopher Tucson Water Christogher.Ave[Y@tucsonaz.gov 

4 Bauer Mary matycbauer@gmail.com 

5 Benemelis Perri CAP gbenemelis@cag-az.com �� 
6 Betcher Brian MSIDD brian@msidd.com 

7 Bevins Orson orson.bevins@gmail.com 

8 Block Mike Metro Water mblock@metrowater.com (7 �A 
9 Braun Eric Mesa, City of eric.braun@mesaaz.gov L/J'Z-:. -

10 Brooks George editor@theebonl£cactus.com 

11 Brothers Kay Las Vegas Valley Water District Ka':r'.Brothers@lvvwd.com 

12 Buma Grant CRIT grant.buma@crit-nsn.gov 

13 Burns Gayle CAP gburnsaz@cox.net 

14 Buschatzke Tom ADWR tbuschatzke@azwater.gov 

15 Bushner Greg Vidler Water GBushner@vidlerwater.com 

16 Cannon-Etie Pamela Qamelacetie@cox.net 

17 Capps Gregg Chandler, City of Gregg.CaQQS@chandleraz.gov 

18 Carpenter Guy CAP guy@arizonawaterguy.com 

19 Chandler Randy USBOR rchandler@usbr.gov 

20 Chappell Barbara Avondale, City of bchaQQel l@avondale.org 

21 Collazo Tom Nature Conservancy tcollazo@tnc.org 

22 Commandeur Leo Global Water Resources Leo.Commandeur@gwresources.com 

23 Cooke Ted CAP tscooke@caQ-az.com 

24 Crockett David Flowing Wells Irrigation District dcrockett@fwid.org 

25 Cullom Chuck CAP ccullom@ca1;1-az.com 

26 Culp Peter Squire Sanders QCUIQ@ssd.com 

27 Curtis MCURTIS40l@aol.com 

28 Damas Wayne Sunbelt Holdings wdames@sunbeltholdings.com 

29 Danos Val AMWUA vdanos@amwua.org 

30 DeMarco Tony CAP ademarco@caQ-az.com / y 
- '--

31 Dent Patrick CAP 1;1dent@ca12-az.com YP 
32 DeRosa Marilyn Avondale, City of mderosa@avondale.org 

33 Dishlip Herb Herb Dishlip Consulting herbdishli1;1@cox.net 

34 Donnnely David Las Vegas Valley Water District david.donnelly@lvvwd.com 

35 Downing James Jim@harcuvarco.com 

36 Dunham Doug ADWR dwdunham@azwater.gov 

37 Dunlap Doug CAP ddunla12@ca1;1-az.com 

38 Ehlers Jeff SRP jwehlers@sr12net.com 

39 Entsminger John Las Vegas Valley Water District John.Entsminger@lvvwd.com 

40 Erlandsen Evelyn ADWR ejerlandsen@azwater.gov 

41 Fabritz-Whitney Sandra ADWR safabritz@)azwater.gov 

42 Fairbanks Frank CAP frank.fairbanks@cox.net 

43 Farley Tom tomfarley@aaronline.com 

44 Farmer Scott scott@land-homes.com 

45 Ferguson Dan dferg@email.arizona.edu 

46 Ferris Kathy AMWUA kferris@amwua.org 

47 Flores Nan nxf@cox.net 

48 Forbes Denise Ryley Carlock & Applewhite dforbes@rcalaw.com 

49 Fowler Ron Ronald. W. Fowler(al usace.armv. mil 

50 Franzoy Gene Franzoy Consulting Franzo':r'consulting@cox.net 
.. 

51 Fuerst Dee CAP dfuerst@caQ-az.com �_J/ 
52 Garrick Dustin dustingarrick@gmail.com 

V 

53 George Maureen mrglawl@frontier.com 

54 Gin Gary Phoenix, City of ga[Y.gin@1;1hoenix.gov 

55 Given Gary CAP ggiven@caQ-az.com 

56 Goddard Terry CAP terry@ter[Ygoddard.com 

57 Gray Jeff R&R Partners jeff.gral£@rr1;1artners.com 

58 Griffin Gail Arizona Senate ggriffin@azleg.gov -

59 Grignano Laura CAP lgrignano@cai;1-az.com .�-:fl 
60 Gross Don ADWR d jgross@azwater.gov ,VIU 
61 Haberman mhaberman@lrlaw.com n 
62 Harbour Tom CAP tharbour@caQ-az.com v,-.� 

63 Harris Christopher Colorado River Board of California csharris@crb.ca.gov 

64 Hartdegen Jim CAP jim@jv85194.com 

65 Hartdegen Jim The Hartdegen Group jim@jv85194.com 

66 Haws Mitch USBOR mhaws@usbr.gov 

67 Hendricks Paul Consultant Qhendricks@cox.net 

68 Hendrix Mike Mohave County mike.hendrix@mohavecounty.us 



Arizona Water Banking Authority 
3550 N. Central Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona 85012 

Telephone 602-771-8487 
Fax 602-771-8686 

Web Page: www.azwaterbank.gov 

NOTICE AND FINAL AGENDA OF MEETING OF 

THE ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY COMMISSION 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given that there will be a meeting of the 
Arizona Water Banking Authority Commission on Wednesday, December 4, 2013 at 
10:00 a.m. at the Arizona Department of Water Resources, 3550 North Central Avenue, 
Phoenix, Arizona 85012, Upper Verde Conference Room. The meeting is open to the 
general public. 

The agenda for the meeting is as follows: 

I. Welcome/Opening Remarks

II. Approval of Minutes
• October 16, 2013 meeting

Ill. Water Banking Staff Activities 
• Monthly Deliveries
• Update on recovery planning
• Update on Indian firming discussions

IV. Discussion and Approval of 2014 Annual Plan of Operation
• Overview of public comment
• Approval of 2014 Annual Plan of Operation

V. Discussion and Approval of CY 2014 Water Delivery Budget
• Overview of budget
• Adoption of budget

VI. Call to the public

VII. Action Planning
• Overview of action planning process
• Facilitation on vision, current reality and commitments
• Next Steps

Note: The AWBA Commission will recess for lunch at an appropriate time. No business of 
the AWBA will be discussed during the lunch recess. 



AWBA 
Page 2 

Future Meeting Dates: 
Wednesday, March 19, 2014 
Wednesday, June 18, 2014 
Wednesday, September 17, 2014 
Wednesday, December 3, 2014 

Dated this 3rd 
day of December, 2013 

All visitors must use the south elevators; please stop at the 2
nd 

floor to sign-in and 
receive a visitor's badge. Badges are to be displayed at all times. Visitors are also 
required to sign out and return their badges. Thank you for your assistance. 

Persons with a disability may request a reasonable accommodation, such as a sign 
language interpreter, by contacting Michelle Moreno at 602-771-8530 or 602-771-8501 
(TDD). Requests should be made as early as possible to allow time to arrange the 
accommodation. 



I. Welcome/Opening Remarks

NOTES: 



IL Approval of Minutes of Meeting 

NOTES: 

Move approval of October 16, 2012 AWBA meeting minutes 

ACTION: 

Approve minutes with any needed corrections. 



ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 
Draft Minutes 

October 16, 2013 
Arizona Department of Water Resources 

Welcome/Opening Remarks 
Chairman Sandra Fabritz-Whitney welcomed attendees. All 
Authority members were present except for Jim Hartdegen and ex

officio members, Senator Gail Griffin and Speaker of the House 
Andy Tobin. 

Approval of Minutes 

AUTHORITY MEMBERS 
Sandra Fabritz-Whitney, Chairman 
Maureen R. George, Vice-Chairman 
Clifford A. Neal, Secretary 
Jim Hartdegen 
John Mawhinney 

EX OFFICIO MEMBERS 
The Honorable Andy Tobin 
The Honorable Gail Griffin 

Chairman Fabritz-Whitney requested a motion to approve the minutes of the 
September 4, 2013 regular quarterly meeting of the AWBA. Cliff Neal moved to 
approve the minutes. Maureen George provided the second to the motion, and the 
motion passed. 

Water Banking Staff Activities 
2014 Draft Plan of Operation. Virginia O'Connell, AWBA Manager, provided an 
update on the draft 2014 Plan of Operation. She informed Commission members that 
because of the government shut down, CAP does not have a final order from its federal 
customers. Still, the AWBA appears to be on target with the roughly 70,000 acre-feet 
of water identified in the preliminary draft Plan. She noted she is working with CAP 
staff to focus deliveries for the Phoenix AMA at the Agua Fria and Hieroglyphic 
Mountains Recharge Projects in the west valley and Superstition Mountains Recharge 
Project (SMRP) in the east valley. Deliveries are no longer scheduled for the Tonopah 
Desert Recharge Project as initially indicated. Commission members will be notified 
when the final delivery amounts become available. 

Mr. Neal asked if the SMRP agreement between CAP and SRP leaves storage capacity 
available for the AWBA. Ms. O'Connell responded that there is storage capacity 
available for the AWBA in 2014. Mr. Mawhinney asked if the AWBA has sufficient 
financial resources to store additional water if it should become available. Ms. 
O'Connell responded that it was dependent on the AMA,. There are funding resources 
and storage capacity available in the Phoenix AMA. In the Tucson AMA, there is some 
funding, but capacity is limited with additional storage capacity only available at the 
Lower Santa Cruz Recharge Project. In the Pinal AMA, there is capacity, but there are 
no funds available for additional storage. 

Recovery Planning Update. Ms. O'Connell reminded Commission members that a 
draft of the first half of the recovery plan was provided at the last AWBA meeting in 
September. The draft was also provided to the Ad Hoc Recovery Planning Group for 
feedback. Several comments have been received. These comments and any additional 
comments will be reviewed for incorporation into the draft recovery plan. The 
lnteragency Recovery Planning Group is continuing its work on the remaining sections 
of the recovery plan. While the second half of recovery plan has not been completed, 
the group has made considerable progress. She introduced Laura Grignano, CAP 
senior analyst, who gave a presentation on the recent updates to the plan, which 



included an evaluation of the location of AWBA's existing long-term storage credits 
relative to future recovery needs (available on the AWBA's website). Based on credits 
accrued through 2012, some important points include: 

• 70% of credits accrued for M&I firming are located in the Phoenix AMA and
Phoenix AMA subcontractors hold 64% of the M&I CAP entitlement

• 20% of the credits accrued for M&I firming are located in the Tucson AMA and
Tucson AMA subcontractors hold 33% of the M&I CAP entitlement

• 10% of the credits accrued for M&I firming are located in the Pinal AMA and Pinal
AMA subcontractors hold 3% of the M&I CAP entitlement

• 73% of Interstate credits, 73% of shortage reparation credits, and 76% of general
fund credits, including the 256,174 acre-feet reserved for the Mohave County
Water Authority, are located in the Pinal AMA making this AMA the focus for
recovery for these purposes

• 87% of credits accrued using withdrawal fees are located in the Pinal and
Phoenix AMAs making these AMAs the focus of recovery for Indian firming
absent any future general fund appropriations used for Indian firming

Ms. Grignano described two examples of how recovery could be distributed between 
AMAs. In both cases, the Pinal AMA would assume the majority of the recovery during 
the near and mid-term periods. In the long-term, the Pinal and Phoenix AMAs would 
share the majority (over 72,000 acre-feet) in the first example. In the second example, 
the Pinal AMA's share of recovery would be just over 63,000 acre-feet and the Phoenix 
AMA's share would be nearly 42,000 acre-feet. The Tucson AMA would assume13,000 
acre-feet of recovery in the first example and a little over 20,000 acre-feet in the second 
example. 

Mr. Mawhinney expressed concern about the continued characterization of the AWBA

meeting its M&I firming goal for the Tucson AMA given that projections indicate 
otherwise. He added that to suggest the withdrawal fee credits may be needed for this 
purpose instead of required is inappropriate. Mr. Neal asked how staff could refer to it 
any differently until the credits have been dedicated to that purpose. Mr. Mawhinney 
did not agree that the credits needed to be dedicated, only that it be recognized that 
they will be necessary. 

Action Planning - Top Priority Items 
Long-term storage credit purchase proposal. Ms. O'Connell informed AWBA 
Commission members that the long-term storage credit purchase proposal, approved at 
the September meeting, was submitted to the Governor's Office for review. Status 
updates will be pr_ovided to Commission members as they become available. She 
added that stakeholder comments to staff thus far have been supportive of the concept. 

General Fund appropriation for Indian firming. Ms. O'Connell noted that at the 
September meeting, staff was also asked to prepare two papers. One paper describes 
various water management objectives that can be addressed using withdrawal fee 
credits. The second paper describes various options for using a general fund 
appropriation to meet Indian settlement obligations. Both papers are available on the 
AWBA's website. Ms. O'Connell summarized the first paper indicating the AWBA 
should have an estimated 820,000 acre-feet of withdrawal fee credits by the end of 

2 



2014. She described the various ways withdrawal fee credits could potentially be 
utilized to meet water management objectives beyond addressing M&I and Indian 
firming and added that there could also be other opportunities not yet realized. Some of 
the options identified may require a change in legislation. 

Mr. Neal asked if the AWBA would be accruing a credit under option 3. f. that proposes 
the use of withdrawal fees to incentivize storage at GSFs by others. Ms. O'Connell 
responded saying the objective of that option is to decrease groundwater pumping at 
groundwater savings facilities (GSFs). The AWBA would not accrue credits, but would 
pay down the cost of others storing at the GSF. It is possible however that through 
further evaluation and discussion, this option could be developed in a way that may 
result in credits accrued by the AWBA. 

Ms. O'Connell briefed Commission members on the second paper that provides 
specific options for how a general fund appropriation could be used for meeting the 
state's Indian settlement requirements. These options vary based on the availability of 
excess CAP water to the AWBA. Ms. O'Connell pointed out that under conditions 
where excess CAP water is available but limited, storing water for Indian firming 
purposes using general fund appropriations would reduce the amount of water stored 
for the AWBA's other obligations, potentially leaving monies available in the Water 
Banking Fund. Alternatively, if there is more water, a general fund appropriation would 
allow the AWBA to store that additional water, particularly in AMAs where money is 
limited. Assuming 2014 dollars, the options presented could produce anywhere from 
5,700 to 90,000 acre-feet of credits assuming various levels of funding. 

Mr. Neal asked given the AWBA's proposal to deliver the remaining 10,000 acre-feet of 
water for the Southside Replenishment Bank over the next two years (5,000 AF each 
year) due to the increased shortage risk in 2016, if withdrawal fees are used in 2014 to 
deliver the additional 4,000 acre-feet over the 1,000 acre-foot minimum, would the 
AWBA accrue fewer credits for water management objectives. Ms. O'Connell 
responded that this would be the case because the same funding source is needed to 
accomplish both purposes. She noted that because the AWBA had less water 
available for storage in 2013, there will be withdrawal fees available to pay for the 
additional 4,000 acre-feet of deliveries to the SSAB in 2014 while still storing an amount 
similar to 2013 for management purposes. For 2015, however, this will not be the case, 
since the withdrawal fees will have been fully expended in 2014. Delivering the 
additional 4,000 acre-feet of water to the Replenishment Bank in 2015 will mean that 
less water will be stored at the GSFs in the Pinal AMA that year. 

Chairman Fabritz-Whitney inquired if withdrawal fees from the Phoenix AMA could be 
used to pay for the additional storage at the SSAB. Ms. O'Connell clarified that absent 
a legislative appropriation, only Pinal AMA withdrawal fees can be used for this 
purpose. Mr. Henley pointed out that once the AWBA has delivered 15,000 acre-feet to 
the Replenishment Bank the obligation will have been met. By delivering the remaining 
balance over the next two years, it will ensure the Bank has met its obligation in the 
event water is not available to the AWBA in 2016. Mr. Neal reiterated that the water the 
AWBA could otherwise have delivered to agriculture in 2014 will instead be delivered to 
the Gila River Indian Reservation for meeting the Replenishment Bank reponsibilities. 

3 



Mr. Neal further inquired if general fund appropriations had previously been in the 
Indian reserve subaccount. Ms. O'Connell responded that $12.4 of the $13.5 million 
originally provided had been reappropriated by the legislature. Mr. Neal asked if such 
action was subsequently found to be unconstitutional. Ms. O'Connell replied no 
clarifying that it had been the finding regarding monies transferred from the interstate 
resource subaccount. General fund monies held in the Indian reserve subaccount 
would therefore still be at risk. 

Mr. Mawhinney lauded the work product prepared by staff calling it innovative. Mr. Neal 
agreed and inquired about the next steps. Ms. O'Connell explained that the deadline for 
ADWR to submit its appropriation request to the Governor's Office is October 31st

• For 
ADWR to include the request in its budget, the AWBA would need to know the amount 
and specifically what the money would be used for. Mr. Neal commented that from his 
perspective, the only item on the list that appears ripe for an appropriation request is 
the Replenshment Bank obligation. 

Mr. Mawhinney offered that perhaps requesting money without a specific purpose 
would not be as problematic if the appropriation was requested in such a form that it 
remained directly in the control of the Legislature until the opportunity to spend it 
presented itself. He suggested the Joint Legislative Budget Committee (JLBC) could be 
given the authority to release the funds. While this would not be a direct appropriation, 
there would be an opportunity to use the funds when the time was right. The Legislature 
might find such a concept more attractive. The question would be what would trigger 
the release of the funds. Chairman Fabritz-Whitney responded saying she had not 
considered the JLBC holding the monies in an account. The first step however, is that 
the Executive branch must still agree to an appropriation. 

Chairman Fabritz-Whitney reiterated her concerns. First, the request must be very

specific and second there must be water. She explained that she is not comfortable 
asking for an appropriation to purchase water when there is no water available. Mr. 
Mawhinney suggested a worse situation would be for water to become available and to 
not have money available. Chairman Fabritz-Whitney suggested different monies are 
available including 4¢ tax monies and withdrawal fees, especially in the Phoenix and 
Tucson AMAs. Ms. George expressed concerns about putting monies in a fund 
controlled by the JLBC, noting the money would be at too much risk. Chairman Fabritz
Whitney asked if Mr. Mawhinney's suggestion would require a change in statute. Mr. 
Mawhinney commented that the idea was conceptual and that such details would need 
to be worked out. He reminded Authority members that the Tucson AMA is still far from 
reaching its M&I firming goals. Getting an appropriation for the Replenishment Bank 
would make withdrawal fees directly available for M&I firming. He continued indicating 
that Indian firming is an obligation the Legislature knowingly accepted and for which it 
had even provided an initial appropriation, which was then taken back. The objective is 
to remind the Legislature of this obligation. Chairman Fabritz-Whitney reminded the 
members that the AWBA has sufficient withdrawal fee credits to meet its Indian firming 
obligations today. Mr. Mawhinney had questions regarding the potential for more 
settlement obligations. Mr. Henley provided a brief update on the status of various 
settlements and indicated that no discussions are pointing toward additional obligation. 

4 



Mr. Neal suggested the AWBA request an appropriation for an amount sufficient to 
- make the additional deliveries to the Southside Replenishment Bank for 2014 and to

direct staff to work with the GRIC on developing the other options identified in the
paper, particularly those involving non-traditional storage. A separate request for
appropriation could perhaps be made the following year. Ms. George supported Mr.
Neal's suggestions and also agreed with Mr. Mawhinney that the State took on the
Indian firming obligation and should be held accountable. Ms. O'Connell informed
Commission members that the total cost to fullfill the Replenishment Bank obligation is
$1.7 million. The amount needed to pay for 4,000 acre-feet in 2014 is $664,000.

Mr. Neal made a motion that the AWBA request an appropriation for $664,000 to pay
for the additional 4,000 acre-feet of water deliveries to the Southside Replenishment
Bank in 2014 as identified in the current draft Plan of Operation and to reserve the
option to request a general fund appropriation to pay for an additional 4,000 acre-feet of
deliveries to the Replenishment Bank in 2015, subject to hydrologic conditions at that
time, and further, to direct staff to develop an Indian firming proposal with the GRIC and
the WMAT that explores the use of non-traditional storage. Ms. George provided the
second to the motion. The AWBA Commision voted 3-1 in favor with Chairman Fabritz
Whitney voting nay expressing concerns that an artificial deadline was being created for
the Replenishment Bank obligation, which is not to fullfill the obligation by 2015, but
rather to deliver 1,000 acre-feet each year over the next ten years.

Mr. Mawhinney asked that the AWBA hold discussions about any future appropriation
requests in June or July instead of October as it did this year. Chairman Fabritz
Whitney acknowledged Mr. Mawhinney's request.

Call to the Public 
Eric Braun, City of Mesa, clarified that while the City of Mesa had been identified in the 
paper on Options for Using a General Fund Appropriation to meet Indian Settlement 
Obligations, the reference in no way indicates support or lack of support for this 
particular option or any option described in the paper. Chairman Fabritz-Whitney 
thanked him for his comment and announced a break for lunch, noting the meeting 
would resume no later than noon. 

Action Planning - Environmental Scan 
Chairman Fabritz-Whitney called the meeting back into order. She explained the 
AWBA was going through an action planning process and that the first step in the 
process involved conducting an environmental scan. She introduced Terri Sue Rossi, 
AWBA Technical Administrator, indicating that Ms. Rossi was providing her facilitation 
services to the group. 

Ms. Rossi explained the overall action planning process to the group indicating there 
were four steps: 

1. Environmental scan
2. Vision and commitments
3. Stakeholder feedback
4. AWBA final decision

She then led the group in a facilitated activity (results are posted on the AWBA's 

5 



website under Reports/Other). Some implications of the environmental scan include: 

• Diminishing resources: water and money
• Increasing competition for water and money
• Possibility of near term shortage
• Possibility of falling below 1025'
• Need to make tough decisions on priorities
• External pressures
• Potential for major changes in Colorado River operations
• Celebrate success of AWBA and others in accomplishing what has been done
• Only the storage part of the program has been done; there's still recovery
• Lack of political will and understanding
• Uncertainty
• Understand complexity of issues relative to staffing decisions
• Need for education
• Energy water nexus
• Sell/trade credits for strategic reasons

Chairman Fabritz-Whitney left the meeting at 1 :00 p.m. Vice-Chairman Maureen 
George assumed the responsibilities of the Chair at that time. 

The second step of the action planning process, vision and commitments, will be 
addressed at the next AWBA meeting scheduled for December 4th. 

The meeting adjourned at 1 :30 p.m. 

6 



III. Water Bank Staff Activities

NOTES: (No action required, agenda item for discussion only) 

Call on Virginia O'Connell to update members on: 

• Monthly deliveries

• Update on recovery planning

• Update on Indian firming discussions

ACTION: None 



.,. ________ / --------, 
2013 Plan O·f Operation - :INTRASTATE 

uo 

120 

i100 

:t 
.,. BO 
a 

m 

;; r,o 
'3 
E 

a� 
N 

DELIVERIES - ALL AM.As 

Planned vs. Aciu:al 

0 I ::F3I ■ ·r1 ■� I I 1· Tl I ■iii I I 1::::1 I I··■ I • I Ii--■ I I I I 

3'5 

30 
.;,
i?5 
e 
:t 
g20 
a
-... 
:: 1:5 
'3 
E 

ij10 

5 

0 

Jal 

DELIVERIES - flilNAL AMA 
Planned vs. Actual 

�--
�--

11e·o 111ar ilflr 111.1'.1 ]'II ,.. iillg 81!11 oct nav Clec 

12 llO 

70 
10 

60 

g I I 

(0 

30 

20 

,::, I 

5 

35 

30 

25 
J 

20 

? 
15 

10 

5 

0 0 

illEIJVERIE S - PIIOEIIIX At.IA 

; 

.. .. -� . .. ,_ 

: ..... '\ 1-:-
...... 

--

..... 
---

)arl 

I 

,' -- '
Ii " ii .... 1.1111 ,, ,. 

lleb 111 

ill""..... 

Pianned vs. Actual 
?5 

20 

15 e 
� :t 

� 
10 ;:'.; 

-----, 

i : : iiiiJrr�: Illa} JI.II 

OELIVEAIES -TOCSON AMA 
Planned vs. Actual 

""'" 
I 

�"' 

I 1�11 lr 

.. 

-

I-�

I 
I .. 

I r-
I 

t--- -
- -- -

� 

_t,-
..... -
' t--- -
,-. t--- ,__. 

illlf � JI.II ,.. aig sqi oct nav Clec 

5 

41 

.. 

J i 
e 

J :t.,..,.

2 � 

0 

1-�� ��'I) --�IC:1111} �!0,111;1



Actual deliveries updated 22-Nov-13 
�ofQ:,er� ?-lk,;:-11 jan feb mar apr may jun jul aug sep oct nov dee total 

Phoenix AMA 

TONOPAH DESERT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
ZOUJ zooo 2.030 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6..o:JO 

AGUAFRIA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,034 0 1,269 0 0 4,303 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

QCIO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 448 0 0 448 

0 0 0 0 0 0 11'5 t.34.3 ,Z.285 t14,2 t.14.3 t 14.2 i:-2.:Jtl 
SUPERSTITION MTN= 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 300 1,000 907 0 0 2,207 

0 500 500 ,Tu" 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (.l'{k'> 

Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,334 1,000 2,624 0 0 6,958 
Total to date 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,334 4,334 6,958 6,958 6,958 6,958 
F'ro,wh:'d�-3/to� zooo Z.500 Z.530 ,Tu? 0 0 11'5 l.34.3 2.,285 t14.2 UIS t14.2 14..362 

PillBIAMA 

CAIOD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,868 1,732 0 0 0 4,600 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6..600 0 0 0 0 6..6tJtJ 

MSIDD 510 3,140 2,350 0 600 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,600 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 l.650 t.650 (.650 (.650 0 6,.600 

HIDO 0 0 0 0 1,400 0 1,000 2,200 0 1,000 0 0 5,600 
408 536 38:1 !J35 !J35 536 .:.

'";

4? 218 4?2 400 6?0 254 6,.600 
SoU(hside Bank 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,000 

(.{W 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 lOOO 
Subtotal 1,510 3,140 2,350 0 2,000 0 1,000 5,068 1,732 1,000 0 0 17,800 
Total to date 1,510 4,650 7,000 7,000 9,000 9,000 10,000 15,068 16,800 17,800 17,800 17,800 17,800 
Pro,wh:'d �-3/to� l408 536 38:1 !J35 !J35 536 241 8..469 Z.1,2,!.' Z.050 Z.:120 .254 .2Q.600 

TucsonAMA 

AVRA VALLEY 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 w 1'00 88:J 
CAVSARP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
SAVSARP 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,000 

zooo zooo zooo .zooo 0 0 0 0 0 0 2.000 t.!Jtl! 1t.!Jtlf 
LO\,JER SANTA CRU2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 201 2,696 2,322 0 0 5,219 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
PIMA Mlf\E ROAD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 800 500 0 0 1,300 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 iW 800 li'W 600 4..000 
CMIO 0 0 0 0 0 0 551 1,041 361 0 0 0 1,953 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
BK\.JFARMS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
KAI FARMS -Red Roe 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Subtotal 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 0 0 551 1,242 3,857 2,822 0 0 16,472 
Total to date 2,000 4,000 6,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,551 9,793 13,650 16,472 16,472 16,472 16,472 
�wd�-3/to� zooo ZoaJ ZoaJ zooo 0 0 0 0 ,W 800 .3,.883 .3,.401 �?84 

TOTAL 3,510 5,140 4,350 2,000 2,000 0 1,551 9,644 6,589 6,446 0 0 41,230 
Total to date ,. 3,510" 8,650" 13,000" 15,000" 17,000" 17,000" 18,551 " 28,195" 34,784" 41,230 " 41,230 " 41,230 ,. 41,230 
Pro,wfc>d��to� 5,.408 5,.036 5,.5t!l .3,.53? 335 536 422 S,.81! 5,.!tl? .3,.�? 1..346 4.. ?.9? 52.546 



IV. Discussion and Approval of 2014 Annual Plan of Operation

NOTES: (Action required) 

Call on Virginia O'Connell to provide an overview of the 2014 Annual Plan of 

Operation. (Powerpoint presentation) 

ACTION: 

Move adoption of the Water Banking Authority 2014 Annual Plan of Operation as 

submitted with minor or technical changes 



FINAL DRAFT 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

ANNUAL PLAN OF OPERATION 

2014 

Sandra A. Fabritz-Whitney, Chairman 

December 2013 



FINAL DRAFT 

The Arizona Water Banking Authority 

Summary 

The Arizona Water Banking Authority (AWBA) was created in 1996 to store the unused 
portion of Arizona's annual entitlement of Colorado River water. This water is delivered 
through the Central Arizona Project (CAP) aqueduct as excess CAP water and stored 
by the AWBA in the aquifers of central and southern Arizona. By storing this water, the 
AWBA accrues long-term storage credits that can be recovered in the future to provide 
back-up (firmed) supplies during shortages or to make water available pursuant to 
interstate banking contracts. Credits can also be extinguished to manage groundwater 
supplies and improve aquifer health. By storing this water, the AWBA not only assists 
the state in utilizing its full 2.8 million acre-feet entitlement but also secures a 
dependable water supply necessary to ensure the state's long-term prosperity. 

From inception through 2013, over 4.1 million acre-feet (MAF) of excess CAP water has 
been delivered for AWBA storage. The cost to deliver and store this water totaled 
approximately $315 million and represents 3.5 MAF for Arizona uses ($206 million) and 
594,000 acre-feet in support of interstate banking with Nevada ($109 million). 
Additionally, 5,000 acre-feet of water has been delivered directly to the Gila River Indian 
Community at a cost of $614,000 for establishing the Southside Replenishment Bank, a 
state requirement under the Arizona Water Settlements Act. 

The money that funds the AWBA comes from three primary sources: general fund 
appropriations received at the discretion of the legislature, groundwater withdrawal fees 
collected in the Phoenix, Pinal, and Tucson Active Management Areas (AMA), and ad

valorem property taxes of up to four cents per $100 of assessed valuation levied and 
collected by the Central Arizona Water Conservation District (CAWCD) within its service 
area. The availability of these funds for AWBA use varies both on an annual basis and 
by the amounts collected within each AMA/County. There are also restrictions on the 
ways the AWBA may utilize these revenues for meeting its firming goals and 
obligations. Interstate banking costs for Nevada, the AWBA's only interstate partner at 
this time, are paid for by Nevada at the time storage occurs. 

The amount of excess CAP water available to the AWBA and other lower priority users 
has decreased substantially the last few years because of an increase in demand from 
higher priority M&I and Indian CAP water users. This reduction has been directly 
reflected in the amount of water available to the excess pool created by CAWCD for use 
by the AWBA, CAGRD, and the federal government. For 2014, the volume available for 
this pool is roughly 84,400 acre-feet. The portion that is available for use by the AWBA 
is 64,753 acre-feet. Of this amount, the AWBA will store 59,753 acre-feet of water at a 
cost of $10.4 million and directly deliver 5,000 acre-feet of water for the Southside 
Replenishment Bank at a cost of $830,000. There is no interstate storage planned for 
2014. 

The objective of the 2014 Plan of Operation is to utilize limited resources in a way that 
balances the need to make progress on M&I firming goals, such as for the Tucson AMA, 
with the AWBA's Indian settlement responsibilities and water management objectives. 

1 



FINAL DRAFT 

INTRODUCTION 

The AWBA was created to store Arizona's unused Colorado River water entitlement in 
central and southern Arizona to develop long-term storage credits to: (1) firm existing 
water supplies for Colorado River and CAP M&I water users during Colorado River 
shortages or CAP service interruptions; (2) help meet the water management objectives 
of the Groundwater Code; (3) meet the State's obligations in the settlement of Indian 
water rights claims; and (4) assist Nevada and California through interstate banking. 
Changes in the AWBA's enabling legislation in 1999 authorized the AWBA to participate 
in other water banking activities, however, no new water banking activities are included 
in this annual Plan of Operation. 

The AWBA's storage of water is accomplished through the Underground Water Storage, 
Savings and Replenishment Act enacted by the Arizona legislature in 1994 and 
administered by the Arizona Department of Water Resources (ADWR). Through this 
program, the AWBA stores unused renewable water supplies in either underground 
storage (USF) or groundwater savings (GSF) facilities. A USF is a facility that allows 
water to physically be added to an aquifer (direct storage), while a GSF is a facility 
where the water is used in lieu of groundwater, creating a groundwater savings (indirect 
storage). The program mandates the accounting of the water stored and the 
development of long-term storage (L TS) credits. The L TS credits developed will then 
be distributed by the AWBA when future conditions warrant. The use of L TS credits for 
the first three objectives listed is dependent on the source of funds utilized to develop 
the credits. 

The AWBA is required by statute to approve an annual Plan of Operation (Plan) by 
January 1 of each year. Prior to approval of the final Plan, the AWBA is required to 
solicit public comment. A draft of the Plan was presented at meetings of the 
Groundwater Users Advisory Councils (GUAC) for the Phoenix, Pinal and Tucson 
AMAs. Presentation of the draft Plan must be made at publicly-noticed open meetings 
at which members of the public are permitted to provide comment. The AWBA also 
makes the Plan available on its web page and accepts public comment in writing up to 
the time the final draft Plan is presented for approval. 

The Plan is intended to govern the operations of the AWBA over the course of the entire 
calendar year. The AWBA recognizes that day-to-day adjustments in the normal 
operations of the CAP or the individual storage facilities may affect the actual monthly 
deliveries made on behalf of the AWBA. If the adjustments do not impact the overall 
annual delivery projections contained in the Plan, they will be addressed by staff and 
reported to the AWBA members on an as-needed basis. 

2 



FINAL DRAFT 

2013 PLAN OF OPERATION 

The AWBA had approximately 60,700 acre-feet of Colorado River water available for 
use in 2013. Arizona is forecast to use its full entitlement of 2.8 MAF (see Figure 1 ). 

3.0 

- 2.0
Cl) 
a, 

Cl) 

E 1.0:::J 
a, 

0.0 

2.78 

0.21 

1.16 

1.49 

2011 

Totals may add differently due to rounding 

2.79 2.80 

0.13 0.06 

1.17 
1.15 

1.49 1.59 

2012 2013 

Figure 1. Recent Comparison of Colorado River Water Uses by Arizona 

BANK 

■ 01HER

DCAP 

Forecasted direct use of Colorado River water in the Lower Basin is 7.46 MAF in 2013 
as of November 22, 2013 (see Figure 2). 

LOWER BASIN USES 

9.0 
7.32 7.44 7.46 

0.24 <( 0.22 0.24 

Gl 6.0 U) 
2.80 ::J 2.78 2.79 

□NEVADA

■ARIZONA

3.0 :::I □CALIFORNIA 
(I) 4.31 4.42 4.41 

0.0 
2011 2012 2013 

Totals may add differently due to rounding 

Figure 2. Recent Comparison of Lower Basin Uses of Colorado River Water 

3 



FINAL DRAFT 
The AWBA recharged 59,701 acre-feet of water at both USFs and GSFs in 2013. Table 
1 a lists the AWBA's recharge partners for 2013, the amount of water that can be stored 
under each of the AWBA's water storage permits, and the amount of water delivered to 
the facility for the AWBA in 2013. The amount of water delivered to a facility is always 
greater than the amount of long-term storage credits accrued by the AWBA because 
credits are computed by subtracting approximately 1 % to 3 % for losses and 5% for a 
"cut to the aquifer" from the total annual deliveries. Final figures for credits accrued 
generally become available in the middle of the following year after review of the annual 
reports filed with the ADWR. These numbers are reported in the AWBA's Annual 
Report. 

Table 1 a. Recharge Partners and Water Storage Deliveries for 2013 

Permit Delivered* 

AMA Facility Type Capacity 
(acre-feet) 

(acre-feet) Intrastate Interstate 

Tonopah Desert USF 150,000 0 0 

<( 
Agua Fria USF 100,000 8,178 0 

:::E Hieroglyphic Mtns. USF 35,000 1,000 0 <( 

>< Superstition Mtns. USF 25,000 4,509 0 
z 
w Queen Creek ID GSF 28,000 2,930 0 
0 

Intrastate/Interstate AMA Subtotal 16,617 0 D.. 

Phoenix AMA Subtotal 16,617 

Central Arizona IDD GSF 110,000 6,600 0 
<l: Hohokam IDD GSF 55,000 6,600 0 
::!!: 
<l: Maricopa-Stanfield I DD GSF 120,000 6,600 0 

<l: Intrastate/Interstate AMA Subtotal 19,800 0 
z 

a: 
Pinal AMA Subtotal 19,800 

Avra Valley USF 11,000 0 0 

<l: 
Lower Santa Cruz USF 50,000 6,047 0 

::!!: SAVSARP USF 60,000 13,284 0 
<l: 

Pima Mine Road USF 30,000 2,000 0 
z 

0 Cortaro-Marana ID GSF 20,000 1,953 0 

Intrastate/Interstate AMA Subtotal 23,284 0 

Tucson AMA Subtotal 23,284 

TOTAL INTRASTATE & INTERSTATE DELIVERIES 0 

TOTAL RECHARGE DELIVERIES 59,701 

* November an'd December deliveries estimated

4 



FINAL DRAFT 

In addition to recharge deliveries, the AWBA also delivered water to meet the 
requirements of the Gila River Indian Community Water Settlement Program 
(Settlement Program). In 2009, the AWBA entered into an intergovernmental 
agreement (IGA) with the Gila River Indian Community that identifies the procedure for 
delivering water for meeting a replenishment obligation and for establishing the 
Southside Replenishment Bank identified in the Settlement Program. While these 
deliveries do not accrue long-term storage credits that may be recovered in the future, 
the Replenishment Bank receives a credit for each acre-foot of water delivered. The 
Replenishment Bank can be used as an option for offsetting any replenishment 
obligations created as a result of pumping limitations identified in the Arizona Water 
Settlements Act (Settlements Act) for the Southside Protection Zones. Table 1 b 
identifies the amount of water the AWBA delivered to the Replenishment Bank since 
2009. There was no replenishment obligation in 2013. 

Table 1 b. Replenishment Deliveries 

Southside Replenishment Activities 
2013 Deliveries Cumulative Deliveries 

(acre-feet) (acre-feet) 

Replenishment Obligations 0 0 

Replenishment Bank 1,000 5,000 

TOTAL DIRECT DELIVERIES 1,000 5,000 

The 2013 Plan identified 51,546 acre-feet of scheduled water deliveries for recharge 
purposes. Additional water became available to the AWBA during the year from CAP 
customers that had turned back water. As a result, the AWBA recharged an estimated 
59,701 acre-feet of water: Figure 3 identifies the storage breakdown between GSFs 
and USFs for 2013 and provides a comparison between 2013 and the two previous 
years. 

0.20 

- 0.15

0.10 :e: 
-

tn 
0.05Q) 

.::: 
Q) 

0.00 
Q) 

RECHARGE BY TYPE 

0.14 0.13 

0.09 0.08 0.06 

0.06 
0.04 

0.04 0.02 

2011 2012 2013 

□Groundwater Savings Facility ■Underground storage Facility

Totals may add differently due to rounding 

Figure 3. Recent Comparison of Annual Deliveries to GSFs and USFs 

5 



FINAL DRAFT 

2014 PLAN OF OPERATION 

The AWBA is scheduled to recharge 59,753 acre-feet of intrastate water in 2014. Water 
storage will be occurring in facilities in all three counties. The AWBA will also deliver 
5,000 acre-feet of water for the Southside Replenishment Bank. The AWBA's total 
deliveries for 2014 will be approximately 64,753 acre-feet. The AWBA is not planning 
any interstate storage. 

When developing its Plan of Operation, the AWBA evaluates four critical factors: (1) the 
amount of water available to the AWBA for delivery; (2) the CAP canal capacity 
available to the AWBA for the delivery of water; (3) the funds available and the costs 
required to deliver the water; and (4) the capacity available for use by the AWBA at the 
various recharge facilities. In addition to these critical factors, the AWBA takes into 
consideration recommendations made by the Groundwater Users Advisory Councils 
(GUAC) of the three AMAs regarding water management objectives and priorities for 
storage. The amount of water available to the AWBA for 2014 is the limiting factor for 
this Plan. 

I. Water Availability

The factor of water availability consists of two parts: (1) the amount of water 
available on the Colorado River for diversion by the CAP within Arizona's 
allocation; and (2) the amount of CAP water available to the AWBA for delivery 
under the existing pool structure. 

The proposed Annual Operating Plan (AOP) for water year 2014 distributed by 
the Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) stated that the Intentionally Created 
Surplus (ICS) Condition is the criterion that will govern the release of water for 
the states in the Lower Basin during calendar year 2014. Because Arizona is not 
creating or requesting ICS, the State will operate under normal conditions, which 
allows 2.8 MAF of water available for use within Arizona. Arizona's on-river use 
is forecast to be 1.2 MAF, leaving approximately 1.6 MAF available for diversion 
by CAP. 

For 2014, the AWBA will purchase water from the Excess CAP water pool that is 
available for use by the AWBA and CAGRD. The CAGRD uses this pool to 
create its replenishment reserve and has an equal priority to the AWBA when 
using it for that purpose. The Federal government may also order water from this 
pool for meeting its Indian firming obligations. The CAWCD Board of Directors 
(Board) establishes the volume available in this pool annually. Because of 
continuing demand from higher priority users, the quantity available in this pool 
for 2014 is 84,408 acre-feet. 

Subtracting the projected uses for the CAGRD replenishment reserve (8,274 
acre-feet) and Reclamation (11,381 acre-feet), leaves a remaining balance of 
64,753 acre-feet for the AWBA. Water availability is the primary limiting factor in 
developing the 2014 Plan. 

6 



FINAL DRAFT 
11. CAP System Capacity

CAP system capacity is approximately 1.8 MAF. Under normal operating 
conditions, CAP diverts approximately 1.6 MAF of water. Reclamation estimates 
that this amount will be available for delivery by CAP in 2014. This amount 
includes the volume of water to be delivered for the AWBA. Because there is still 
capacity available in the CAP aqueduct to deliver additional supplies, capacity 
within the CAP for the delivery of AWBA water is not a limiting factor in this Plan. 

Ill. Available Funds 

The AWBA will have withdrawal fees collected in 2014 and some funds carried 
over from the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs from 2013 available for use in this Plan. 
Total withdrawal fees are estimated at $5.5 million and include $2. 7 million for 
the Phoenix AMA, $2.4 million for the Pinal AMA and $400,000 for the Tucson 
AMA. 

As in previous years, the CAWCD Board resolved to retain the ad valorem

property taxes collected in its three-county service area and not transfer those 
revenues to the AWBA Fund. Property tax revenues retained by CAWCD can be 
used to offset the cost of AWBA water deliveries in CAWCD's service area. 
Estimated funds available from CAWCD for the 2014 Plan are: Maricopa County 
($12.8 million), Pinal County ($800,000), and Pima County ($3.1 million). 

Funding was not a limiting factor in developing the Plan given the amount of 
water that is available for AWBA use. If additional water becomes available, 
funding could limit the amount of water that can be stored in the Pinal AMA. The 
amount of funds collected in both the Pinal and Tucson AMAs is expected to be a 
limiting factor in these areas in the future. 

IV. Available Storage Facility Capacity

AWBA staff conferred with facility operators to discuss their delivery schedules 
and their continued interest in participating with the AWBA. These discussions 
confirmed that there was significant interest from facility operators in all three 
AMAs in partnering with the AWBA. If additional supplies become available, the 
AWBA still has sufficient capacity to meet its anticipated needs. Storage capacity 
is therefore not a limiting factor for this Plan. 

The Water Delivery Schedule (Table 2) identifies the AWBA's partners for 2014 and the 
amount of water scheduled to be recharged. The second column in this section 
identifies the AWBA's water storage permit capacities for each facility, which are based 
on the maximum permitted storage amounts of the facilities. The actual storage 
capacities available to the AWBA do not typically equal the AWBA's permitted volume 
because the storage facility operators may have agreements with other storage 
partners. In addition to recharge deliveries, Table 2 also identifies the amount of water 
scheduled for meeting the AWBA's Southside Replenishment obligations. 

7 



FINAL DRAFT 
SHORTAGE REPARATION FUNDS 

The Southern Nevada Water Authority (SNWA) agreed to provide $8 million to the 
AWBA to assist Arizona in offsetting impacts from shortages pursuant to the Arizona
Nevada Shortage-Sharing Agreement. A total of $4.5 million of these funds have been 
expended since the agreement was executed 2008. The AWBA will expend an 
additional $1.5 million to store water in the Tucson AMA in 2014. 

NEW FACILITIES 

There are no new recharge facilities identified in the 2014 Plan. 

8 



FINAL DRAFT 

Table 2 

Water Delivery Schedule (Acre-Feet) 

Calendar Year 2014 
Permitted 

AWBA-Recharoe Sites Capacitv (AF) Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total 

PHOENIX /WA: 

HIEROGL YPHk: MTN 35,000 500 500 500 500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,000 
LI. AGUAFRIA 100,000 500 500 500 500 1,500 647 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,147 
ti) 

TONOPAH DESERT D 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ::> 150,000 0 0 0 0 

SUPERSTITION MTNS 35,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 D 0 4,500 

10647 

LI. NEW MAGMA 54,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
ti) QUEEN CREEK 28,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,230 2,000 1,000 1,000 0 5,230 
(!) 

D TONOPAHID 15,000 0 D 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
5230 

/WoA TOT AL INTRASTATE 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,500 1,500 647 0 1,230 2,000 1,000 1,000 0 15,877 

PINAL/WA: 

LI. CAIDD 110,000 0 0 3,000 2,000 700 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 700 
(I) HOHOKAM 55,000 0 0 0 0 0 2,000 2,000 1,700 0 0 0 0 5,700 
C) 

MSIDD 120,000 400 500 900 900 900 500 200 200 400 400 300 100 5,700 
17,100 

/WoA TOT AL INTRASTATE 400 500 3,900 2,900 1,600 2,500 2,200 1,900 400 400 300 100 17,100 

TUCSON Al'lif,.._ 

AVRAVALLEY 11,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 300 700 1,000 

LI. LOWER SANTA CRUZ 50,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 1,000 1,000 1,500 0 6,500 
ti) . PIMA MINE ROAD 30,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,000 500 544 2,044 

CAVSARP 100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
SAVSARP 60,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 0 0 0 0 1,000 1 000 2,000 2,000 14,000 

23,544 

CORTARO-MARANA ID 20,000 0 0 0 0 482 1,000 1,000 750 0 0 0 0 3,232 
LI. KAI FARMS (Red Rock) 11,231 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
ti) 

C) BKW Farms 14,316 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
3,232 

/WoA TOTAL INTRASTATE 3,000 3,000 3,000 2,000 482 1,000 1,000 750 2,000 3,000 4,300 3,244 26,776 

TOTAL INTRASTATE 5,400 5,500 8,900 7,400 3,582 4,147 3,200 3,880. 4,400 4,400 5,600 3,344 59,753 
···-·············--······-········--···•·.o•·············--------"...,.., .. ····-····----······--··----···· 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1 

0 0 0 0 0 TOTAL INTERSTATE 

TOTAL RECHARGE 5,400 5,500 8,900 7,400 3,582 4,147 3,200 3,880 4,400 4,400 5,600 3,344 59,753 

DIRECT DELIVERY (Non-Storage): 
Southside Reolenishment Bank 0 5 000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,000 
Southside Reolenishment Oblioation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL DIRECT 0 5,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,000 

TOTAL DELIVERIES 5,400 10,500 8,900 7,400 3,582 4,147 3,200 3,880 4,400 4,400 5,600 3,344 64,753 

9 



FINAL DRAFT 

INDIAN SETTLEMENTS 

The Plan does not specifically identify storage to meet the State's firming obligations 
under the Settlements Act; however it does incorporate replenishment deliveries 
required under the Gila River Indian Community (GRIC) Settlement Program. 

Indian Firming 

CAP supplies will not be shorted in 2014. There are also no long term system outages 
anticipated that would reduce deliveries to CAP customers. Therefore, there is no 
obligation for the AWBA to firm Indian supplies under this Plan. 

The Settlements Act recognizes three categories where the State has firming 
responsibilities. The first two obligations pertain to firming of water for the GRIC and 
other Arizona tribes in times of shortage for a 100-year period; the third obligation 
pertains to providing assistance to the Secretary of the Interior (Secretary) in carrying 
out obligations of the Southern Arizona Water Rights Settlement Act. 

1. GRIC - The AWBA must ensure that up to 15,000 acre-feet per year of CAP
NIA priority water be made available to the GRIC during shortages. The AWBA
did not receive a general fund appropriation for 2014 to assist in meeting this
obligation. Withdrawal fees may be utilized for Indian firming purposes after
appropriated funds are expended. The 2014 Plan does not identify
expenditures specifically for this purpose. However, credits accrued through
the use of withdrawal fees could be used to meet this obligation if necessary.

2. Other Tribes - The AWBA is also required to firm up to 8,724 acre-feet per year
of CAP NIA priority water for other Indian Settlements. The White Mountain
Apache Tribe has entered into a settlement which requires the AWBA to firm
3,750 acre feet per year of the 8,724 acre-feet CAP NIA priority water. As with
the GRIC obligation, no general fund appropriations were made available for
this purpose. However, credits developed under this plan using withdrawal fees
could be used for this purpose if needed. Settlements for other Indian Tribes
have not been enacted at this time.

3. Federal Assistance - The AWBA has completed the State obligation to
contribute $3 million in cash or in-kind services to assist the Secretary in
meeting the Federal obligation to the Tohono O'odham Nation. This obligation
was met by accruing an equivalent amount of L TS credits that will be
distributed to the Secretary during shortages.

Southside Replenishment Bank 

In addition to the firming requirements of the Settlements Act, the AWBA is required to 
deliver 15,000 acre-feet of water to the GRIC for the purpose of establishing the 
Southside Replenishment Bank. The Replenishment Bank will fulfill the obligations 
created under the Settlements Act for protection of the Reservation from off-reservation 
groundwater pumping. The AWBA must deliver a minimum of 1,000 acre-feet per year 

10 



FINAL DRAFT 
to establish the Replenishment Bank. Since 2009, the AWBA has delivered this amount 
each year, creating a cumulative total of 5,000 acre-feet. 

Projections from Reclamation's August 2013 24-Month Study indicated there was a 
significant chance that a Lower Colorado River shortage could be declared in 2016. 
While a good winter snow pack and ample runoff could ease these projections, a 
shortage, if it occurs, would mean there would be no excess CAP water available for 
low priority CAP water users such as the AWBA. To avoid the risk of not being able to 
make the minimum delivery required, the AWBA is planning to deliver the remaining 
10,000 acre-feet of water needed to complete the obligation during the next two years. 
The 2014 Plan therefore includes 5,000 acre-feet of direct deliveries to the GRIC at a 
cost of $830,000. If hydrologic conditions improve, the AWBA will re-evaluate the 
amount of water that is delivered in 2015. Cumulative costs through 2014 total 
$1,444,000. 

Assignment of Long-term Storage Credits by the Tohono O'dham Nation 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 45-841.01, the Tohono O'dham Nation (Nation) must offer ten 
percent of the any credits they accrue at the Mission Mine Complex to the AWBA at a 
price per acre-foot that is equal to the AWBA's delivery and storage costs at the time of 
sale. If the Nation offers the AWBA credits in 2014, the AWBA will evaluate the offer to 
determine if it is reasonable to purchase those credits. While these credits may be used 
for M&I firming or for water management purposes, there is a restriction that the credits 
not be recovered within five miles of the exterior boundary of the reservation. 

INTERSTATE WATER BANKING 

The AWBA, SNWA, and CRCN executed a Third Amended and Restated Agreement 
for Interstate Banking on May 20, 2013. The amended agreement removed the AWBA's 
obligation to accrue 1.25 MAF of long-term storage on behalf of SNWA. Under the 
amended agreement, storage for interstate purposes will be determined by the parties 
on an annual basis and may include the storage of Nevada's unused apportionment. 
Storage will be paid for by Nevada on a pay-as-you-go basis. There is no interstate 
storage planned for Nevada in 2014. 

RECOVERY 

Recovery of AWBA long term storage credits is not anticipated in this Plan. 

Staff representatives for ADWR, CAWCD and the AWBA continue to meet to develop a 
Joint Recovery Plan that will identify the duties and responsibilities of the parties as they 
relate to recovery of the AWBA's long term storage credits and delivery of the water 
created by that recovery. While the actual recovery of AWBA credits for CAP M&I 
priority subcontract firming is not projected for several decades, recovery for interstate, 
Indian CAP NIA priority , and on-River domestic supplies may occur sooner so a better 
understanding of how that recovery is expected to occur will be very beneficial. As the 
staffs continue these efforts they will seek input from all interested parties. If recovery 
for firming of Indian CAP NIA priority water and fourth priority domestic supplies along 
the River is necessary, potential opportunities to provide this firming exist. 

11 



FINAL DRAFT 

PRICING 

In June 2013, the CAWCD Board approved its water delivery rate schedule for calendar 
years 2014/2015. The AWBA rate for recharge is equivalent to the rate for excess M&I 
water at $166 per acre-foot, an increase of $22 per acre-foot from the previous year. 

Groundwater pumping costs in the Phoenix, Pinal and Tucson AMAs vary depending on 
energy sources used and the location of wells, i.e. depth to water. The AWBA cost 
share in 2014 for the GSF partners in the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs is $34 per acre-foot. 
Based on the range of groundwater pumping costs and cost shares paid by other 
partners, it was determined the cost share in 2014 for the Tucson AMA will be $16 per 
acre-foot. 

Table 3 reflects the water delivery rate CAWCD will charge the AWBA, the cost share 
GSF operators pay, and the rates the AWBA pays to utilize different USFs. When 
storing water for other than M&I firming and water management purposes at CAWCD 
recharge facilities, the AWBA also pays a facility capital charge. There is no 
administrative cost component in the facility cost because the AWBA pays the CAWCD 
administrative costs on an annual basis. While no interstate banking is anticipated in 
this Plan, the rate established for interstate banking is $189 per acre-foot, plus facility 
costs and facility capital costs. 

Table 3. 2014 Water and Facility Rates 

Recharge Cost per Acre-foot 

CAWCD delivery rate to AWBA for water storage $166 

Interstate rate $189 

Groundwater Savings Facility operator cost share rate 
1 

Intrastate 

Phoenix and Pinal AMAs $34 

Tucson AMA $16 

Interstate $26 

Underground Storage Facility rate paid by AWBA 

CAWCD - Phoenix Facilities 
2 

$8 

CAWCD - Tucson Facilities 
3 

$15 

Avra Valley Recharge Project $15.45 

Clearwater Facility (CAVSARP/SAVSARP) $15.62 

Direct Deliveries 

CAWCD rate to AWBA for Southside Replenishment Bank deliveries $166 

1 This rate is paid directly to CAP by the GSF operators and is not available as revenue to the AWBA. The
AWBA's rate for delivery of in lieu water is thus reduced to $132/af for intrastate deliveries to the Phoenix and 
Pinal AMAs, $150/af to the Tucson AMA, and $163/af for interstate deliveries. 

2 • Additional capital charge of $15 per acre-foot for interstate storage.
3 Additional capital charge of $9 per acre-foot for interstate storage.

12 



FINAL DRAFT 

ACCOUNTING 

The AWBA's enabling legislation required the development of an accounting 
system that allows the tracking of all credits accrued by the AWBA and the 
funding sources from which they were developed. The ADWR maintains the 
accounting of the credits. The AWBA accounts for the expenditure of the funds 
utilized from the Water Banking Fund. CAWCD accounts for the expenditure of 
the 4 cent tax and reports that expenditure to the AWBA. 

The estimated total cost of the AWBA's 2014 Plan is approximately $10.4 million. 
Table 4 provides estimates of the funds available to the AWBA, the funds to be 
utilized, the entity that holds the funds, and the credits estimated to accrue to 
those accounts based on the 2014 Plan. 

Table 4. Funding for 2014 Annual Plan of Operation 

Estimated Funds Estimated 
Available Estimated Funds Utilized Credits 

AWBA CAWCD1 AWBA CAWCD (AF) 

Withdrawal Fees 

Phoenix AMA $2,700,000 - $675,000 - 3,880 

PinalAMA
2 

$2,440,000 - $2,287,200 - 10,160 

Tucson AMA $400,000 - $167,000 - 860 

Four Cent Tax 

Phoenix AMA $0 $12,800,000 $0 $1,868,000 10,730 
Pinal AMA $0 $800,000 $0 $800,000 5,580 

Tucson AMA3 $0 $3,100,000 $0 $3,100,000 16,010 
Other 

General $0 

Phoenix AMA - $0 - 0 

Pinal AMA - $0 - 0 
Tucson AMA - $0 - 0 

Shortage Reparations (NV): $1,500,000 

Phoenix AMA - $0 - 0 

Pinal AMA - $0 - 0 

Tucson AMA - $1,500,000 - 7,760 

TOTALS $23,740,000 $10,397,200 54,980 
1 The figures shown are estimates provided by CAWCD staff, and are based on amounts anticipated to be collected

during the 2014 tax year. If utilization is greater than estimated, there may be additional funds held by CAWCD 
that could be made available at the discretion of the CAWCD Board of Directors. 

2 Includes expenditure for 5,000 acre-feet of direct deliveries to establish the Southside Replenishment Bank under
the Gila River Indian Water Settlement Program. 

3 Estimates include revenue from CAWCD's capital charge for construction of state demonstration projects when
facilities are used for interstate purposes and by entities that do not pay the 4¢ ad va/orem tax. 

The 2014 Plan was developed to prioritize storage in the Tucson AMA primarily to make 
progress on the M&I firming goal for that AMA. Expenditures in the Tucson AMA total 
$4,767,000. Nearly all funds estimated to be collected in 2014 were utilized, including 
$1.5 million in shortage reparation funds. The remaining water supplies were divided 
between the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs. As with the Tucson AMA, nearly all funds 

13 



FINAL DRAFT 
available for the Pinal AMA, including withdrawal fees carried over from the previous 
year, are expended under the Plan and total $3,087,200. Expenditures include 
$830,000 in withdrawal fees to pay for deliveries to the Southside Replenishment Bank. 
Funds utilized in the Phoenix AMA total $2,543,000 and include a portion of both the 
withdrawal fees and four cent tax monies estimated to be available. 

Table 5 provides an estimate of the AWBA funds expended and the location of the 
credits accrued since inception through 2013. 

Table 5. Cumulative Long-term Storage Credits 1997-2013 

FUNDING 

_ _l?OURCE 

Withdrawal Fee 

Phoenix AMA 

Pinal AMA 

Tucson AMA2 

Four Cent Tax 

Maricopa County 
Pinal County 

Pima County 

Other 

General Fund3 

Indian Firming 
Appropriation 

Shortage Reparations 

Pinal Redirect4 N/A 

Interstate 

Nevada5 

TOTAL 

FUNDS 

EXPEN_D_ED 

$19,774,700 

$17,012,800 

$8,301,400 

$88,979,500 
$10,450,200 
$41,942,000 

$11,100,900 
$1,522,100 
$6,395,000 
$3,183,800 

$2,338,200 
$0 
$0 

$2,338,200 

$4,499,700 
$1,099,300 
$1,708,600 
$1,691,800 

$109,087,900 
$11,444,400 
$71,508,200 
$26,135_,300 

$313,487,300 

CREDITS 

. AMOUNL(AF) �Q9_�JIQN 

299, 130 Phoenix AMA 

402,270 Pinal AMA 

100,930 Tucson AMA 

1,339,880 Phoenix AMA 

198,500 Pinal AMA 
400,950 Tucson AMA 

403,830 
42,320 Phoenix AMA 

306,970 Pinal AMA 
54,550 Tucson AMA 

28,480 
0 Phoenix AMA 
0 Pinal AMA 

28,480 Tucson AMA 

91,280 
20,640 Phoenix AMA 

60,510 Pinal AMA 

10,130 Tucson AMA 

14,130 Pinal AMA 

600,650 

51,010 Phoenix AMA 

439,850 Pinal AMA 

109_,_790 Tucson AMA 

3,880,030 
1 Actual expenditures and credits for 1997-2012; 2013 estimated.
2 Includes expenditure of $22,698 for the assignment of 234 acre-feet of credits to the AWBA from the

Tohono O'odham Nation pursuant to §45-841.01. 
3 256,174 AF of credits reserved pursuant to contract with Mohave County Water Authority.
4 Credits accrued from water scheduled for the Tucson AMA and redirected to the Pinal AMA for storage at

GSFs. Facility operators paid 100% of the water delivery rate. 
5 Includes 50,000 acre-feet of credits transferred from CAWCD pursuant to Amended Agreement for

Interstate Water Banking. 

14 



FINAL DRAFT 

Table 6 identifies the progress expected to be made on the AWBA's goals and 
obligations through 2014. 

Table 6. Projected Percent of Goals and Obligations Achieved through 2014 

Location and Funding Source Goal Obligation Non-Credit Credits 
Objective Goal/Oblig. Accrued 

Achieved (AF) 

Phoenix AMA 

M&I Firming Ad valorem tax 1,566,000 AF 1,350,610 

Groundwater Mamt 
1 

Withdrawal Fees 303,010 

Pinal AMA 

M&I Firming Ad valorem tax 243,000 AF 204,080 

Groundwater Mamt1 Withdrawal Fees 412,430 

Tucson AMA 

M&I Firming Ad valorem tax 864,000 AF 416,960 

Groundwater MQmt 1 ·2 Withdrawal Fees 96,170 

On-River M&I Firming3 
General Fund 420,000 AF 403,830 

Indian Settlements: 

350,000 AF5 
up to 15,000 

GRIC Firmina Withdrawal Fees AFNR 0 

200,000 AF
5 

up to 8,724 
Future Settlements Withdrawal Fees AFNR 0 

Federal Assistance $3,000,000 $3,000,000 34,102 

Tucson AMA Appropriation $2,338,171 28,481 

Withdrawal Fees $630,490 5,621 

Cost of Services6 
$31,339 nla 

15,000 AF 
Southside Reol. Bank Withdrawal Fees Direct Deliverv 10,000 

Other: 

Shortage Reparations- Gifts, Grants, 
Nevada Donations $8,000,000 $6,000,000 99,030 

Pinal Redirect Credits
7 N/A 14,125 

Percent 
Goal/Oblig. 
Achieved 

86% 

84% 

48% 

59% 

96%
4 

0% 

0% 

100% 

67% 

75% 

N/A 

1 Withdrawal fees could be utilized in addition to 4¢ ad valorem tax revenues for M&I firming if needed to reach firming goals.
2 Includes 234 AF credits acquired from the Tohono O'odham Nation pursuant to §45-841. 01. 
3 By resolution passed in 2002, the AWBA established on-river firming as the highest priority of use for credits accrued through
expenditure of general fund appropriations. 256,174 AF are of credits reserved pursuant to contract with Mohave County Water 
Authority. 

4 This percentage reflects full utilization of general fund credits accrued to date and would change as other objectives are 
identified by the AWBA. 

5 Based on estimates from the Indian Firming Study Commission Report dated January 6, 2006. 
6 Include $14,883 and $16,456 deducted for payment of cost of services for FY08 and FY09, respectively. 

7 Credits accrued from 15,000 AF of water that was scheduled for the Tucson AMA and redirected to the Pinal AMA for storage 
at GSFs. These credits are currently identified for M&I firming in the Tucson AMA and would meet 1% of the firming goal. 

15 



-

FINAL DRAFT 

PUBLIC REVIEW AND COMMENT 

AWBA staff presented the Plan to the public in conjunction with the Groundwater Users 
Adivsory Councils (GUAC) meetings for the Phoenix, Pinal and Tucson AMAs as 
required by statute. The Plan was also distributed to the public via email and made 
available on the AWBA web page for public review and comment. The GUACs 
supported the Plan and had no requests for changes to it. 

In the Phoenix AMA, GUAC members inquired if there were limitations on the amount of 
withdrawal fees that could be expended from the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs for firming 
Gila River Indian Community supplies given that the reservation straddles both AMAs. 
Staff indicated there were no imposed limits. Absent general fund monies, the AWBA 
has proposed utilizing withdrawal fee credits for the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs that have 
been accrued on reservation first. Pinal AMA withdrawal fees would then primarily be 
used to firm GRIC supplies, while Phoenix AMA withdrawal fees would be used for 
firming future Indian settlements, including the White Mountain Apache lessees. 

There were also questions regarding the likelihood that withdrawal fees collected in the 
Phoenix AMA would not be fully utilized because of the reduction in supplies available 
to the AWBA. Staff noted that any funds remaining at this time would be available to 
purchase additional water that typically becomes available to the AWBA throughout the 
year. The AWBA may also utilize withdrawal fees to acquire other sources of water if 
CAP water is not available and are the only funds currently available for meeting Indian 
settlement obligations. Furthermore, if CAWCD's authority to levy the four-cent ad

valorem tax is not renewed, withdrawal fees will likely be the only funding source 
available to the AWBA if and when those funds are no longer available to offset AWBA 
costs. 

In the Pinal AMA, there were comments in support of the AWBA's plan to make 
progress on the Southside Replenishment Bank responsibilities. In the Tucson AMA, 
members responded positively and expressed appreciation on the AWBA's efforts to 
focus storage in that AMA. The Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement District also 
endorsed the AWBA's efforts to increase storage in the Tucson AMA, particulary at 
underground storage facilities that have existing or planned recovery systems (see 
attached letter). 

16 



November 27, 2013 

Ms. Virginia O'Connell, Manager 
Arizona Water Banking Authority 

WATER 

3550 North Central Avenue, Second Floor 
Phoenix,Arizona 85012 

Re: Draft 2014 Plan of Operation 

Dear Ms. O'Connell: 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Draft 2014 Annual Plan of Operation for the 
Arizona Water Banking Authority (AWBA). By early 2014, the Metropolitan Domestic Water 
Improvement District's (District) engineering consultant will be finished with a pipeline routing and 
recovery well study for the Avra Valley Recharge Project (AVRP). The project's goal is to support 
on-going regional water resources management efforts within the Tucson Active Management Area 
(AMA) by 1) minimizing groundwater overdraft within our Metro-Main service area through 
recovery of District stored water at A VRP, and 2) having a recovery system that can directly access 
AWBA's M&l firmed water during Colorado River shortages or CAP system interruptions. For 
these reasons, the District supports A WBA' s draft 2014 Plan of Operation that includes storage at 
AVRP. 

The District also endorses A WBA' s decision to increase the volume of storage in the TAMA at 
underground storage facilities with existing or planned recovery systems. The draft 2014 plan 
recommends 17,044 acre-feet of storage at A VRP, Pima Mine Road, and SA VS ARP or about 12 
percent more storage than in 2013. The District hopes storage by AWBA at these facilities will 
further increase when expansion ofrecharge capacity occurs. 

Again, thank you for the opportunity to comment on the draft plan. Please call me at (520) 575-
8100, if you have any questions on the District's comments. 

Sincerely, 

Michael W. Block 
Water Resources Manager 

MWB/rnwb 

c: Warren Tenney 

Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement District 
P.O. Box 36870 Tucson, Arizona 85740 (520) 575-8100 (520) 575-8454 FAX www.metrowater.com 



� 

� .. =- - -

Draft 2014 Plan of Operation 

Arizona Water Banl<ing Authority 

December 4, 2013

= 









��WBA Long-term Storage~C;ed-its 
(Acre-Feet) 

1997-2013 

Funding Source Phoenix AMA Pinal AMA Tucson AMA 

Withdrawal Fees 299,130 402,270 100,930 

4-Cent Tax 1,339,880 198,500 400,950 

General Fund 42,320 306,970 54,55° 

Other: 

Indian Firming Appropriation - - 28,480 

Shortage Reparation 20,640 60,510 10,130 

Pinal Redirect - 14,130 -

( GSF operators paid 100% of cost) 

Interstate - Nevada 51,010 439,850 109,790 

TOTAL 1,752,980 1,422,230 704,830 
-

* Long-term storage credits estimated for 2013

5 



,
 .......

 



�� 

Public Review and Comment 
Groundwater Users Advisory Council Meetings 

• Phoenix AMA
Asked for clarification on use of withdrawal fees for firming Gila River Indian 
Community supplies 

Had questions regarding the full utilization of withdrawal fees given the 
reduction in excess CAP water supplies available to the AWBA 

• PinalAMA
Supported the AWBA's plan to make progress on the Southside Replenishment 
Bank responsibilities 

• TucsonAMA
Supported increased storage in the Tucson AMA overall and the efforts to store 
water at USFs that have existing or planned recovery systems 



r 
,. 

-.... �:,; -
::-,,,..---

2014 Plan of Operation 

Three Main Components to Consider 

• Water Availability

• Funding

• Storage Facility Capacity

�--.__,,. 





� Funding Sources 

• Withdrawal Fees Collected in Phoenix, Pinal and Tucson AMAs

• 4-CentAd valorem Tax

Levied by CAWCD in Maricopa, Pinal, and Pima Counties 

Retained in CAWCD fund accounts since 2003

Utilized by CAWCD to offset AWBA water storage and delivery 
costs as part of project operating & maintenance costs 

• General Fund Appropriations

• Shortage Reparation - Arizona/Nevada Shortage Sharing



�-
.,, 

Storage Facility Capacity 

• Discussions with Storage Facility Operators on Storage
Opportunities

• Significant Interest in Providing Storage Capacity

• Sufficient Storage Capacity Available if Additional
Water Becomes Available, but subject to funding
resources

-







". Funding for 2014 Ann-ual Plan of Operation 
Funding Source Estimated Available II Estimated Utilized Estimated Credits (AF)

Withdrawal Fees 

Phoenix AMA $2,700,000 $675,000 3,880 

Pinal AMA $2,440,000 $2,287,200 10,160 

Tucson AMA $400,000 $167,000 860 

CAWCD Offset (4-cent tax) 

Phoenix AMA $12,800,000 $1,868,000 10,730 

Pinal AMA $800,000 $800,000 5,580 

Tucson AMA $3,100,000 $3,100,000 16,010 

General Fund $0 $0 0 

Shortage Reparation 

Tucson AMA $1,500,000 $1,500,000 7,760 

Interstate-Nevada $0 $0 0 
I 

TOTAL $23,740,000 $10,397,200 54,980 I 

artiil 



L....il 
�-•�' ----

AW BA Goals and Obligations 

• Firm existing CAP M&I Priority subcontracts during

shortages or outages

• Firm Fourth Priority Colorado River Water users

during shortages

.. 
---.�-'-=""' 

• Assist in meeting the water management objectives of

the Groundwater Code

• Meet State Indian Settlement obligations





V. Discussion and Approval of CY 2014 Water Delivery Budget

NOTES: (Action required) 

Call on Virginia O'Connell to provide an overview of the water delivery budget for 

the 2014 calendar year 

ACTION: 

Move adoption of the Water Banking Authority water delivery budget for CY 2014. 



DRAFT 11/27/13 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

2014 WATER DELIVERY and RECHARGE BUDGET 

REVENUES AVAILABLE for 2013 DELIVERIES 

Withdrawal Fee
1 

Phoenix AMA 
Pinal AMA 
Tucson AMA 

Shortage Reparations2 

TOTAL 

1 Projected based on 2013 collections. 
2 Provided by SNWA pursuant to Shortage Sharing Agreement 

DELIVERY and RECHARGE RATES 

Water Delivery 
Recharge Rate (Intrastate) 
Replenishment Bank Rate 

Direct Recharge Facility Rate 
CAWCD - Phoenix Facilities 
CAWCD-Tucson Facilities 

Avra Valley Recharge Project 

Clearwater Facility 
(CAVSARP/SAVSARP) 

Cost Recovery for In-lieu Recharge: 
Phoenix & Pinal 
Tucson 

WATER DELIVERY and RECHARGE COSTS 

Withdrawal Fee 
Phoenix AMA 
Pinal AMA 

Direct delivery3 

Tucson AMA 

Water Delivered (AF) $/AF 

4,214 
11,039 

5,000 
939 

$160 
$132 

$166 
$178 

Shortage Reparations 

Total 2014 

Tucson AMA 8,434 $178 

29,627 

$4,629,200 

$5,540,000 
$2,700,000 
$2,440,000 

$400,000 

$1,500,000 

$7,040,000 

$166 
$166 

$8 
$15 

$15.45 

$15.62 

Total 

$34 
$16 

$3,129,200 
$675,000 

$1,457,200 

$830,000 
$167,000 

$1,500,000 

$4,629,200 
3 Pinal W/F used for direct deliveries to the GRIC for Southside Replenishment Bank. 

Withdrawal Fees 

Phoenix AMA 
Pinal AMA 
Tucson AMA 

Shortage Reparation 

PROJECTED CARRYOVER 

Central Arizona Water Conservation District 

$2,025,000 
$152,800 
$233,000 

$0 

Estimated water stored and 4-cent tax to be expended by the CAWCD to accrue 
Long-term Storage Credits for the AWBA 

Water Delivered (AF) $/AF Total 
4 cent tax Utilized 

Maricopa 11,663 $160 $1,868,000 
Pinal 6,061 $132 $800,000 
Pima 17,403 $178 $3 100 000 

Total 2014 35,127 $5,768,000 



VI. Call to the Public

NOTES: 

The A WBA Commission will take a ____ minute break for lunch. The meeting 

will resume no earlier than ___ o'clock to continue with the Action Planning 

process. 

Future Meeting Dates: 

Wednesday, March 19, 2014 

Wednesday, June 18, 2014 

Wednesday, September 17, 2014 

Wednesday, December 3, 2014 



VII. Action Planning

NOTES: (no action required, facilitated process) 

Call on Terri Sue Rossi to give an overview of the action planning process and to 

facilitate the second component of that process. 

ACTION: (none) 



In the Concern of Protecting Against the Impact of Shortages: Environmental Scan 
What are the actions, trends, paradigms and approaches emerging for the Arizona Water Banking Authority 

and others relative to protecting against the impact of shortages? 
Arizona Water Banking Authority October 16, 2013 

ESTABLISHED 1

BOUNDARY IDEAS I EMERGING 
C �-· nv•NG J

ON THE HORIZON (BOUNDARY) 
► # Expand authority (more than just

AWBA) to fund infrastructure
► Private involvement in firming
► Rethink "I" portion of firming for

"M&I"
► # Mitigate agricultural shortages -

protect assured water supply for
"M" [municipal]

► Individual subcontractors finish the
firming goal - Bank does what it can
do and no more

► # Mead "Banking"
► # Consider firming agricultural

supplies
► n Make AWBA repository of new

syppljes (syrfacwater water

management)
► A Larger role in statewide water 

management 
► Moving beyond 2096 (100 year goal)

EMERGING 
► Use of forbearance agreements
► Bank and Indian communities

developing agreements
► # Supply augmentation
► Credits purchase and sale
► # Direct use of reclaimed water
► # Weather modification for river

augmentation
Ability to acquire or store other
water sources

► Hydrologic realities
► Additional storage and recovery

capacity
Indian/interstate recovery
obligations

► Opportunities outside AMAs
► # Recovery Planning
► Other methods of water banking -

ICS
► # Inter-AMA flexibility

ESTABLISHED 
► Indirect reuse for potable

supplies
► Direct reuse for turf and

industrial
► Coordination of modeling

among agencies
► Use of 100-year goals
► Ag conservation
► # Storage and recovery of long-

term storage credits
► AMA specific funding - storage
► Leases and exchanges

CAP/reclaimed water
► Groundwater savings facilities
► Storing Colorado River water

underground
► M&I conservation
► Model using historic hydrology
► # Municipal customer demands

are always met
► # Expand sources of water and

funding
► More governance regarding water

conservation 
Expand authority (more than just 
AWBA) to fund infrastructure 

KEV 
GREEN =#Pleasing 
Red = A Caution 

'---- -----------------'---------------'-----l BOTH =#BOTH

DYING 
► Type 1 rights are _the answer to

urban water
► Effluent has not value
► A Weather modification
► Storing excess CAP not the only

solution
► A No more dams 
► A Water bud 
► "Toilet to tap"
► 4C tax
► Abundant excess CAP water
► Concerns about full use of

Arizona entitlement
► General funds availability
► Southside replenishment goal
► Diminishing interstate storage
► # M&I use of groundwater as

primary source
► A Affordability of agriculture 

CAP water 
► Acting unilaterally
► Single action "Silver bullet"

solution



In the Concern of Protecting Against the Impact of Shortages: Environmental Scan 
What are the actions, trends, paradigms and approaches emerging for the Arizona Water Banking Authority 

and others relative to protecting against the impact of shortages? 

Arizona Water Banking Authority October 16, 2013 

IMPLICATIONS 

► Diminishing resources: water and money ► Celebrate success of AWBA and others in accomplishing what has been

► Increasing competition for water and money accomplished so far

► Possibility of near term shortage ► Lack of political will and understanding I 
�- Possibility of falling below 2015 )., Uncertainty ,. 

I ► Need to make tough decisions on priorities ,. Understand complexity of issues relative to staffing decisions 

► External pressures ► Need for education I 

► Potential for major changes in Colorado River operations ► Energy water nexus

► Sell/trade credits for strategic reasons




